U.S. Department of Labor
Occupational Safety and Health Administration
450 Mall Boulevard

Suite J

Savannah, GA 31406

Citation and Notification of Penalty

To: Inspection Number: 1312511
DOLLAR TREE DISTRIBUTION, INC. Inspection Date(s): 04/24/2018 - 10/16/2018
and its successors Issuance Date: 10/24/2018

151 CROSSROADS PARKWAY
Savannah, GA 31407

Inspection Site: The violation(s) described in this Citation and
151 CROSSROADS PARKWAY Notification of Penalty is {are) alleged 1o have
Suvannah, GA 31407 occurred on or about the day(s) the inspection was

made unless othenwise indicated within the description
given below,

This Citatior and Notification of Penalty (this Citation) describes violations of the Occupational Safety and
Health Act of 1970. The penalty(ies) listed herein is (are) based on these violations. You must abate the
violations referred to in this Citation by the dates listed und pay the penalties proposed, unless within 15 working
days (excluding weekends and Federal holidays) from your ceceipt of this Citation and Notification of Penalty
you either call to schedule an informal conference (see paragraph below) or you mail a notice of contest to
the U.S. Department of Labor Area Office at the address shown abore. Please refer 1o the enclosed boohlet
(OSHA 3000) which outlines your rights and responsibilities and which should be read in conjunction with this
form. Issuance of this Citation does not constitute a finding that a violation of the Act has occurred unless there
is & failure to contest as provided for in the Act or, if contested. unfess this Citation s affirmed by the Review

Comrmission or a court,

Posting - The law requires that a copy of this Citation and Notification of Penalty be posted immediately in a
prominent place at or near the location of the violation(s) cited herein, or. if it is not pracuicable because of the
nature of the employer's operations, where it will be readily observable by all affected employ ees. This Citation
must remain posted until the violution(s) cited herein has ( have) been abated, or for 3 working days (excluding
weekends and Federal holidays), whichever is longer.

Informal Conference - An informal conference is not required. However, if you wish to have such a
conference you may request one with the Area Director during the 15 working day contest period by calling 912-
652-4393. During such an informal conference you may present any evidence or views which you believe would
support an adjustment to the citation(s) and/or penaliy(ies).
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If you are considering a request for an informal conference o discuss any issues related to this Citation and
Notification of Penalty, you must take care to schedule it early enough to allow time to contest after the informal
conference, should you decide 1o do so, Please keep in mind that a written letter of intent to contest must be
submitted to the Area Director within 15 working days of your receipt of this Citation. The running of this
contest period is not interrupted by an informal conference.

If you decide to request an informal conference, please complete, remove and post the Notice to Employees next
to this Citation and Notification of Penalty as soon as the time, date, and place of the informal conference have
been determined. Be sure 1o bring to the conference any and all supporting documentation of existing conditions
as well as any abatement steps taken thus far. If conditions warrani, we can enter into an informal settlerment
agreement which amicably resolves this matter without litigation or contest.

Right to Contest - You have the right to contest this Citation and Notification of Penalty. You may contest
all citation items or only individual jterns. You may also contest proposed penalties and/or abatement dates
without contesting the underlying violations. Unless vou inform the Area Director in writing that vou intend
to contest the citation(s) and/or proposed enaltv(ies) within 15 working davs after receipt, the citation(s)
and the proposed penaltv(ics) will become a final order of the Occupational Safety and Health Review

Commission and may not be reviewed by anv court or agency,

Penalty Payment - Penalties are duc within 15 working days of receipt of this notification unless contested
(See the enclosed booklet and the additional information provided related to the Debi Collection Act of 1982))
Make your check or money order payable (o *“DOL-OSHA", Please indicate the Inspection Number on the
remittance. You can also make your payment electronically on v WW.DAY.90v. On the left side of the pily.gon
homepage, you will see un option to Search Public Forms, Type "OSHA" and click Go. From the results, click
on OSHA Penalty Pavment Form. The direct link is:

https:/mwww . pav. sov/paveov/forms/form Instance.htmlZaeenc vEormld=33090334.

You will be required to enter your mnspection number when making the payment. Pay ments can be made by
credit card or Automated Clearing House (ACH) using your banking information. Payments of $25.000 or more
require a Transaction 1D, and also must be paid using ACH. If you require o Transaction ID, please contact the
OSHA Debt Coliection Team w ( 202) 693-2170,

OSHA does not agree 10 any restrictions or conditions or endorsemens put on any check, money order, or
electronic payment for less than the full dmount due. and will process the payments as if these restrictions or
tonditions do not exist

Notification of Corrective Action - For each violation which you do not contest, you must pros ide
abatement certification 1o the Area Director of the OSHA office issuing the citation and identified abay e. This
abatement centification iy to be provided by letter within 10 calendar day s after each abatement date, Abatement
certification includes the date and method of abatement. If the citation indicates that the viofation wus corrected
during the inspection, no abatement certification is required for that itern. The abatement centification letier must
be posted at the location where the violation appeared and the corrective action took place or employees must
otherwise be effectively informed about abatement activities, A sample abatement centification letter is enclosed
with this Citation. In addition, where the citution indicates that abatement doctumentation is necessiry, evidence
of the purchase or repair of equipment, photographs or video, receipts, training records, etc., verifying that
abatement has occurred is required to be provided to the Area Director.

Employer Discrimination Unlawful - The law prohibits discrimination by an employer against an
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employee for filing a complaint or for exercising any rights under this Act. Ap employee who believes that
he/she has been discriminated against may file a complaint no later than 30 days after the discrimination
occurred with the U.S. Department of Labor Area Office at the address shown above,

Employer Rights and Responsibilities - The enclosed booklet (OSHA 3000) outlines additional
employer rights and responsibilities and should be read in conjunction with this notification.

Notice to Employees — The juw gives an employee or his/her representative the opporiunity to object to any
abatement date set for a violation if he/she believes the date to be unreasonable. The contest must be mailed (o
the U.S. Department of Labor Area Office at the address shown abave and postmarked within 15 working days
(excluding weekends and Fedesal holidays) of the receipt by the employer of this Citation and Notification of

Penalty.

Inspection Activity Data - You should be aware that OSHA publishes information on its inspection and
citation activity on the Internet under the provisions of the Elecironic Freedom of Information Act. The
information related to these alleged violations will be posted when our system indicates that you have received
this citation. You are encouraged to review the information concerning your establishment at wu w.osha.gov, If
you have any dispute with the accuracy of the information displayed, please contaci this office,
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U.S. Department of Labor
Occupational Safety and Heaith Administration

NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES OF INFORMAL CONFERENCE

An informal conference has been scheduled with OSHA to discuss the citation(s) issued on

10/24/2018. The conference will be held by telephone or at the OSHA office located at 450

Mall Boulevard, Suite 1, Savannah, GA 31406 on at

. Employees and/or representatives of employees have a right to attend an

informal conference.
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CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET

Inspection Number: 1312511
Company Name: DOLLAR TREE DISTRIBUTION, INC,

Inspection Site: 151 CROSSROADS PARKWAY, Savannah, GA 31407

Issuance Date: 10/24/2018

List the specific method of correction for each item on this citation in this package that does not read “Corrected
During Inspection” and return to: U.S. Department of Labor - Occupational Safety and Health
Administration, 450 Mal Boulevard, Suite J, Savannah, GA 31406

Citation Number and ltem Number was corrected on
By {Method of Abatement):

Citation Number and [tem Numbec wils corrected on
By (Method of Abatement): '

Ciution Number and lem Number wits corrected on

By (Method of Abatement):

Citation Number and hem Number wis corrected on
By (Method of Abatement):

Citation Number and ltem Number was corrected on
By (Method of Abatement);

Citation Number and Item Number wis corrected on
By (Method of Abutement):

I certify that the information contained in this document is accurate and that the affected employees und their
representatisves have been informed of the abatement,

Signature Date

Typed or Prinied Name Title

NOTE: 29 USC 6662) whowser Knowingly muhes any false siuements, Fepresentation or centification in any applicatton. revard. plan vr
other docurments filed or required to be maintained purswnt i the Act shall. upon conviction. be punished by a fine of not mare than
510,000 or by imprisonmient of not more than & munths or both

POSTING: A copy of completed Correctise Action Warksheet should he posted fur employee review
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 13125])

Occupational Safety and Health Adminisiration Inspection Date(s): 04/24/3018 - 10/16/2018
Issuance Date: 10/24/2018

Citation and Notification of Penaliy
~=1tation and ivolilication of Penalty

Company Name: DOLLAR TREE DISTRIB UTION, INC.
Inspection Site: |51 CROSSROADS PARKWAY, Savannah, GA 31407

Citation | Item |  Type of Violation: Serious

OSH ACT of 1970 Section (5)(a)(1): The employer did not furnish employment and a place of
employment which were free from recognized hazards that were causing or likely to cause death or
serious physical harm to employees in that employees were exposed 1o a hazard of being struck-by a
Jockey truck and or over the road tractors:

A)Yard Area, on or about April 23,2018, employees wulk/work in the Yard Area at night where over
the road (OTR) vehicles and powered industrial trucks (PIT) are regularly moving around, exposing
employees to a hazard of being struck by the OTR vehicles and or PITs.

Provide and require the use of high visibilily reflective vest for employees who walk and work in the
Yard Area.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 11/20/2018
Proposed Penalty: 512934.00

Sev pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notfication of Penalty for informanen on =mpioyer and employes ghts and espontsibilities
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 31251]

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 04/24/205 - 10/16/2018
Issuance Date: 10/24/2018

Citation and Notification of Penalty
~=—=220T and (Noulication of Penalty

Company Name: DOLLAR TREE DISTRIBUTION, INC.
Inspection Site: 151 CROSSROADS PARKWAY, Savannah, GA 31407

Citation 1 Item2  Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.1 78(p)(1): Powered indusirial truck(s) found to be in need of repair, defective, or in any
way unsafe had not been taken oul of service until restored 1o sufe operating condition:

A) Yard Area, on or about April 25, 2018, employees operated a Capacity powered industrial tructor
#089 that had only one operating head light during hours of darkness, exposing employees 10 a struck
by hazard.

B) Yard Area, on or about April 27, 2018, employees operated o Kalmar Ottawa T2 powered industrial
tractor #215 that had only one operating heud light during hours of darkness and a non-functioning
horn, exposing employees to a struck by hazard.

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 11/20/2018
Proposed Penalty: $8638.00

Sew pages 1 through 3 of dus Citation and Notfication of Pepalty far information on employer and employes rights and responsitahtics
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 131235
Occupationai Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 04/24/2018 . 10/16/2018
Issuance Date: 10/24/2018

Citation and Notification of Penalty
~==22700 and (votification of Penalty

Company Name: DOLLAR TREE DISTRIBUTION, INC.
Inspection Site: 15 CROSSROADS PARKWAY, Savannah, GA 31407

Citation 1 Item3  Type of Violation: Serious

“

29 CFR 1910.212(a)(1): Machine guarding was not provided to protect operator(s) and other
employees from hazard(s) created by ingoing nip points, rotating parts, and /or flying chips or sparks:

A} Shipping area, bay 15, on or about April 24, 2018, the conveyor belt going over the discharge pulley
on the drive-out mobile belt conveyor was not guarded, exposing employees 10 an in-going nip point
hazard,

B) Shipping area, bay 25, on or about May 8, 2018, the conveyor belt going over the dischurge pulley
on the drive-out mobile belt conveyor wis not guarded, exposing employees to an in-going nip point
hazard,

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 12/12/2018
Proposcd Penalty: $6911.00

See pages | through 4 of this Ciralion and Noufication of Penalty for information on employer and emplosce rights and nespunsibifines
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U.S. Department of Lahor Inspection Number: 131251

Occupational Sufety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 04/24/2018 - 10/16/2018
Issuance Date: 10/24/2018

Citation and Notification of Penalty
=100 and (votitication of Penalty

Company Name: DOLLAR TREE DISTRIBUTION, INC.
Inspection Site: {5] CROSSROADS PARKWAY, Savannah, GA 31407

Citation 2 Jtem 1  Type of Violation: Repeat
29 CFR 1910.176(b): Storage of material created a hazard:

A) Warehouse Aisle 7, storage rack area 38B, on or about April 24, 2018, loose boxes were improperly
stacked on the second level of the ruck system, exposing employees to a struck by hazard.

B) Warehouse Aisle 15, storage rack area 11C, on or about April 24,2018, a pallet  located on the
third level of the racking system had partially fullen down into the rack, cxposing employees 10 a
struck-by hazard.

C) Warehouse Aisle 29, storage rack area 203D, on or about April 24, 2018, a pallet with boxes located
on the fourth level of the rack system was leading outward over the aisle, exposing employees (o a
struck-by hazard.

D) Warehouse Aisle 30, storage rack area 233E, on or about April 24, 2018, a pallet located on the fifth
level of the rack system with boxes on it had partially fallen down into the rack System, cxposing
cmployees to a struck-by hazard.

E) Wuarehouse Aisle 30, Storage rack area 242B, on or about April 24, 2018, loose boxes on the second
level of the rack system were improperly stacked, exposing employees to u struck by hazard.

F} Warehouse Aisle 40, storage rack area 34E, on or about April 24, 2018, the bottom box on a pallet
tocated on the {ifth level of the rack system was crushed causing the pallet of boxes to lean oury ard
over the aisle, exposing employees to a struck-by hazard. G

G) Warehouse Aisle 40. storage rack area 82 E, on or about April 24, 2018, a pallet of boxes located on
the fifth level of the rack system

The Dollar Tree Distribution, Inc. was previously cited for a violation of this occupational safety and
health standard or its equivalent standard 29 CFR 1910. 176(b). which was contained in OSHA
inspection number 1019223, citation number 1, item number 1 and was affirmed as a final order on
July 16, 2015, with respect to a workplace located at 300 Dollar Tree Lane, Joliet, IL.

Sex pages | through 4 of this Citation anyg Nouficution of Penalty for information on cauploser and employes nights and nespunsitnlities
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 131251}
Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 04/24/2018 - 10/ 16/2018
Issuance Date: 10/24/20)8

Citation and Notification of Penaltv
=1talion and Ivotihication of Penalty

Company Name: DOLLAR TREE DISTRIB UTION, INC.
Inspection Site: 151 CROSSROADS PARKWAY, Savannah, GA 31407

The Dollar Tree Distribution, Inc. was previously cited for a violation of this occupational safety and
health standard or its equivalent standard 29 CER |9 10. 176(b), which was contained in OSHA
inspection number 96652 1, citation number 1, item number | and was affirmed as a final order on May

27, 2014, with respect to a workplace located at 99 international Drive, Windsor, CT.

Date By Which Violation Musl be Abated: Corrected During Tnspection
$101629.00

Proposed Penalty:
)

klég E. Westmoreland
irea Director

See pages | through - of this Citanen and Notification of Peaalty for information e employer and employee rights and responsthilities
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U.S. Department of Labor

Occupational Safety and Health Administration
450 Malt Boulevard

Suite ]

Savannah, GA 31406

INVOICE /
DEBT COLLECTION NOTICE

Company Name: DOLLAR TREE DISTRIBUTION, INC.

Inspection Site: 151 CROSSROADS PARKWAY, Savannah, GA 31407
Issuance Date: 10/24/2018

Summary of Penalties for Inspection Number 131251])
Citation 1, Serious $28483.00
Citation 2, Repeat $101629.00
TOTAL PROPOSED PENALTIES $130112.00

To avoid additional charges, please remit pityment prompily 1a this Area Office for the total amount of the
uncontested penalties sumenarized above. Make your check or money order payable to: "DOL-OSHA". Please
indicate OSHA's Inspection Number (indicated above) on the remittance. You can also make your payment
electronically on www.pay.eov. On the left side of the pay.gov homepage, you will see an option to Search
Public Forms. Type "OSHA" and click Go. From the results. click on OSHA Penalty Pavment Form. The
direct link is https:/www.pav.eov/paveor /forms/formInstance.tm!?agencvFormld=53090334. You will
be required to enter your inspection number when making the payment. Payments can be made by credit card or
Automated Clearing House (ACH) ustng your banking information. Payments of 325,000 or more require a
Transaction [D, and also must be pard using ACH. If you require a Transaction ID, please contact the OSHA
Debt Collection Team at (202) 693-2170,

OSHA does not agree 10 any restrictions or conditions or endorsements put on any check. money order, or
clectronic payment for less than the full amount due, and will cash the check or money order as it these
restrictions or conditions do not exist

If u personal check is issued, it will be comertad into an electronic fund transfer (EFT). This means that our
bank will copy your check and use the account information on it to ¢lectronically debit your account for the
amount of the check, The debit from your account will then usually occur within 24 hours and will be shown on
your regulir uccount statement. You will not receive your original check back. The bank will destroy your
original check, but will keep a copy of it, [ the EFT cannot be completed because of insufficient funds or closed
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account, the bank will attempt to make the wransfer up to 2 times.

Pursuant ta the Debt Collection Act of 1982 (Public Law 97-365) and regulations of the U.S. Department of
Labor (29 CFR Part 20), the Occupational Safety and Health Administration is required to assess interest,
delinquent charges, and administrative costs for the coliection of delinguent penalty debts for violations of the
Occupational Safety and Health Act.

Interest: Interest charges will be assessed at an annual rate determined by the Secretary of the Treasury on all
penalty debt amounts not paid within one month (30 calendar days) of the date on which the debt amount
becomes duc and payable {penalty due date). The current interest rate is one percent (1%). Interest will accrue
from the date on which the penalty amounts (as proposed or adjusted) become a final order of the Occupational
Safety and Health Review Commission (that is, 15 working days from your receipt of the Citation and
Notification of Penalty), unless you file a notice of contest, Interest charges will be waived if the full amount
owed is paid within 30 calendar days of the final order.

Delinguent Charges: A debt is considered delinquent if it has not been paid within one month (30 calendar
days) of the penalty due date or if a satisfactory payment arrangement has not been made. If the debt remains
delinquent for more than 90 calendar days, a delinquent charge of six percent (6%) per annum will be assessed
accruing from the date that the debt became delinguent,

Administrative Costs: Agencies of the Departrnent of Labor are required 1o assess additional charges for the

recovery of delinquent debts. These additional chacges are administrative costs incurred by the Agency in its
attempt to collect an unpaid debt. Adminisgeative rosts will be assessed for demand letters sent in an attempt to

collect the unpuid debt.
o/2t) s

2o/

\
i\l:}rgo E. Westmoreland \.,\ Date

Area Directar
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Este~'acumento es muy importante. %‘ 1. No habla inglés,
busque un traductor o llame al (912) 652-4393.

U.S. Department of Labor Occupational Safety and Health Administration
450 Mall Boulevard Suite J
Savannah, GA 31406
Phone: (912) 652-4393 Fax: (912) 652-4329

October 24, 2018 Step 1 - Choose a Response
Option and
Dear Reggie Brown, Act within 15 working days

On 04/24/2018, an OSHA com pliance officer met with
You or your representative as part of an inspection at 151
CROSSROADS PARKWAY Savannah, GA 31407. This letter
includes the citations for the violations that were found (see
summary below). Please choase one of the three options from
the box to the right and complete the associated steps found
on the following page within 15 working days. Please call us if
you have any questions about the enclosed citation and/or
penalties; we are here to help you choose the best option to
resolve your citation as quickly as possible.

Respond now before you lose the ability to discuss
potential adjustments to penalty amounts and/or
due dates. Please choose one option below and
complete the steps on the next page.

Option #1 - Discuss with OSHA
I would like to discuss the citation with an
OSHA representative. This may lead to
changes in the penalty amount, due date or
Sincerely, correction deadlines (if appropriate).

Margo E. Westmoreland, Area Director Option #2 - Correct and Pay

I'agree with the citation, penalties, and correction

YOUI’ Crtatlon Summary deadlines, and da not contest,

DOLLAR TREE DISTRIBUTION, INC.
Inspection Number: 1312511

Option #3 - Contest the Citation

Total Amount Due: $130112.00 I do not agree with the citation, penalties,
and/or correction deadlines, and would like to
Payment Due Date: 15 working days contest.

after receipt of
this letter

Questions or Concerns?
if you have any questions or concerns
regarding the citation, penalties,

and/or correction deadlines, please
Page 6. call us at (912) 652-4393,

Total Number of Violations - 4

You must correct each violotion by the date listed in the
Citation and Notification of Penalty. Please see the violotions
ond the correction deadline for each violation starting on

Your First Correction Deadline is:

11/20/2018



Ster ? - Complete One Option Ch/ Xlist

Please post a copy of the citation at or near the place where each violation occurred, even if you plan to contest.
You can use the checklist to the right to help plan your next steps. Please do not send in vour checklist,

e e — — e e e e e o e e e =
Option #1 - Discuss with OSHA | will complete by:
I. Call: Margo E. Westmoreland, Area Director, at (912) 652-4393 as soon as
p possible to schedule a meeting with an OSHA representative that must /
occur within 15 working days of receiving this citation. Bring supporting -

documentation of existing conditions and corrections done thus far. IF
necessary, you can still contest the citation after this meeting. **This
meeting does NOT extend your 15 working day deadline to contest the
citation,**

- & 2, Fillin and post the attached “Notice to Employees OSHA Informal
Conference” after scheduling meeting,

Option #2 ~ Correct Violations and Pay Penalty | will camplete by:
1. Correct violations, then complete and mail the attached “Certification of
x Corrective Action Worksheet” along with the appropriate evidence of /

repair {e.g. photos, purchase orders, etc.) to the OSHA office listed on the
first page, postmarked within 10 calendar days after each vialation's
correction deadline and include any required evidence. if these
dacuments are transmitted by means other than mailing, the date the
Agency received the documents is the date of submission.

2. Pay the Tota! Penalty by using one of the fallowing methods:
% **include your Inspection Number (see first page) on the payment.** /
Pay Online: Search "OSHA” on Pay by Check: Mail check or
Www.pay.gov and complete the “OSHA money order payable to “DOL-
Penalty Payment Form.” Pay by debit, OSHA" for the Total Penalty to
credit or Automated Clearing House the OSHA office listed on the
(ACH) within 15 working days. Penalties first page within 15 working
over $25,000 must be paid by ACH and days.
require a Transaction ID (Call 202-693-
2170 to obtain one).
Option #3 - Contest the Citation ‘ I will complete by:
— Mail a letter of intent to legally contest to the OSHA office listed on the first page,
gl postmarked within 15 working days. /




U.S. Department of Labor
Occupational Safety and Health Administration
450 Mall Boulevard

Suite J
Savannah, GA 31406
Citation and Notification of Penalty
To: Inspection Number: 1312823
U.S. Xpress, Inc, Inspection Date(s): 04/25/2018 - 05/10/2018
and its successors Issuance Date: 10/24/2018
4080 Jenkins Road
Chattanooga, TN 37421
Inspection Site: The violation(s) described in this Citation and
151 Crossroads Pakway Notification of Penalty is (are) alleged 10 have
Savannah, GA 31407 occurred on or about the day(s) the inspection was

made unless otherwise indicated within the description
given below.

This Citation and Notification of Penalty (this Citation) describes violations of the Occupational Safety and
Health Act of 1970. The penalty(ies) listed herein is (are) based on these violations. You must abate the
violations referred to in this Citation by the dates listed and pay the penalties proposed, unless within 15 working
days (excluding weekends and Federal holidays) from your receipt of this Citation and Notification of Penalty
you either call to schedule an informal conference (sec paragraph helow) or you mail a notice of contest to
the U.S. Department of Labor Area Office at the address shown above. Please refer to the enclosed booklet
{OSHA 3000} which outlines your rights and responsibilities and which should be read in conjunction with this
form. Issuance of this Citation does not constitute a finding that a violation of the Act has occurred unless there
is a failure to contest as provided for in the Act o, if contested, unless this Citation is affirmed by the Review

Commssion or a court '

Posting - The law requires that a copy of this Citation and Notification of Penalty be posted immediately in a
prominent place at or near the location of the violation(s) cited herein, or, if it is not practicable because of the
nature of the employer's operations, where it will be readily observable by all affected employees. This Citation
must remain posted until the violation(s) cited herein has (have) been abated, or for 3 working days (excluding
weekends and Federal holidays), whichever is longer.

Informal Conference - An informal conference is not required. However, if you wish to have such a
conference you may request one with the Area Director during the 15 working day contest period by calling 912-
652-4393. During such an informal conference you may present any evidence or views which you believe would
support an adjustment to the citation(s) and/or penalty(ies).
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If you are considering a request for an informal conference to discuss any issues related to this Citation and
Notification of Penalty, you must take care to schedule it early enough to allow time to contest after the informal
conference, should you decide to do so. Please keep in mind that a written letter of intent to contest must be
submitted to the Area Director within 15 working days of your receipt of this Citation. The running of this
contest period is not interrupted by an informal conference.

if you decide to request an informal conference, please complete, remove and post the Notice to Employees next
to this Citation and Notification of Penalty as soon as the time, date, and place of the informal conference have
been determined. Be sure to bring to the conference any and all supporting documentation of existing conditions
as well as any abatement steps taken thus far. If conditions warrant, we can enter into an informal settlement
agreement which amicably resolves this matter without litigation or contest.

Right to Contest — You have the right to contest this Citation and Notification of Penalty. You may conlest
all citation items or only individual items. You may also contest proposed penalties and/or abatement dates
without contesting the underlying violations. Unless you inform the Area Director in writing that vou intend
to contest the citation(s) and/or proposcd penaltv(ies) within 15 working days after receipt, the citation(s)
and the proposed penalty(ies) will become a final order of the Occupational Safety and Health Review
Commission and may not be reviewed bv anv court or agency.

Penalty Payment - Penalties are due within 15 warking days of receipt of this notification unless contested.
(See the enclosed booklet and the additional information provided related to the Debt Collection Act of 1982.)
Make your check or money order payable to “DOL-OSHA". Please indicate the Inspection Number on the
remittance. You can also make your payment electronically on www.pay.gov. On the left side of the pay.gav
homepage, you will see an option to Search Public Forms. Type "OSHA" and click Go. From the results, click
on OSHA Penalty Pavment Form. The direct link is:

hutps:/lwww.pay.gov/paveov/forms/forminstance. htm}?acenc Formld=33090334.

You will be required to enter your inspection number when making the payment. Payments can be made by
credit card or Automated Clearing House (ACH) using your banking information. Puyments of $25,000 or more
require a Transaction ID, and also must be paid using ACH. If you require a Transaction D, please contact the
OSHA Debt Collection Team at (202) 693-2170.

OSHA does not agree to any restrictions or conditions or endorsements put on any check, money order, or
electronic payment for less than the full amount due, and will process the payments as if these restrictions or
conditions do nat exist,

Notification of Corrective Action - For each violation which you do nol contest, you must provide
abatement certification 1o the Area Director of the OSHA office issuing the citation and identified above. This
abatement certification is to be provided by letter within 10 calendar days after each 2batement date. Abatement
certification includes the date and method of abatement. 1F the citation indicates that the violation was correcied
during the inspection, no abatement cenification is required for that item. The abatement certification letter must
be posted at the location where the violation appeared and the corrective action took place or employees must
otherwise be effectively informed about abatement activities, A sample abatement centification letter is enclosed
with this Ctation. In addition, where the citation indicates that ebatement documentation is necessary, evidence
of the purchase or repair of equipment, photographs or video, receipls, training records, etc., verifying that
abatement has occurred is required to be provided to the Area Director.

Employer Discrimination Unlawful - The law prohibits discrimination by an employer against an
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employee for filing a complaint or for exercising any rights under this Act. An employee who believes that
he/she has been discriminated against may file a complaint no later than 30 days after the discmination
occurred with the U.S. Depantment of Labor Area Office at the address shown above.

Employer Rights and Responsibilities — The enclosed booklet (OSHA 3000) outiines additional
employer rights and responsibilities and should be read in conjunction with this notification.

Notice to Employees — The law gives an employee or his/her representative the opportunity to object to any
abatement date set for a violation if he/she believes the date to be unreasonable. The contest must be mailed to
the U.S. Departmeat of Labor Area Office at the address shown above and postmarked within 15 working days
(excluding weekends and Federal holidays) of the receipt by the employer of this Citation and Notification of
Penahy.

Inspection Activity Data - You should be aware that OSHA publishes information on its inspection and
citation activity on the Internet under the provisions of the Electronic Freedom of Information Act, The
informalion related 1o these alleged violations will be posted when our system indicates that you have received
this citation. You are encouraged to review the information concemning your establishment at www,osha.gov. If
you have any dispute with the accuracy of the information displayed, please contact this office.
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U.S. Department of Labor
Occupational Safety and Health Administration

NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES OF INFORMAL CONFERENCE

An informal conference has been scheduled with OSHA to discuss the citation(s) issued on
10/24/2018. The conference will be held by telephone or at the OSHA office located at 450

Mall Boulevard, Suite J, Savannah, GA 31406 on at

- Employees and/or representatives of employees have a right to attend an

informal conference.
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CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET

Inspection Number: 1312823
Company Name: U.S. Xpress, Inc.
Inspection Site: 151 Crossroads Pakway, Savannah, GA 31407
[ssuance Date: 10/24/2018

List the specific method of correction for each item on this citation in this package that does not read “Corrected
During Inspection” and return to: U.S. Department of Labor — Occupational Safety and Health
Administration, 450 Mall Boulevard, Suite J, Savannah, GA 31406

Citation Number and Item Number was corrected on
By (Method of Abatement):

Citation Number and Item Number was corrected on
By (Method of Abatement):
Citation Number and [tem Number was corrected on

By {Method of Abatement):

Citation Number and Item Number was corrected on
By (Method of Abatement):

Citation Number and Item Number was corrected on
By (Method of Abatement):

Citation Number and ltem Number wis corrected on
By (Method of Abatemznt):

[ certify that the information contained in this document is accurate and that the affected employees and their
representalives have been informed of the abatement.

Signature Date

Typed or Prinied Name . - Tatle

NOTE: 29 USC 666(p) whoeser knowingly makes any fafse statements, representation or certification in any application, record, plan or
other documents filed or required 1o be maintained pursuant to the Act shall, vpon conviction, be punished by a fine of not more than
510,000 or by imprisanment of net more than 6 months or both

POSTING: A copy of compleled Corrective Aclion Worksheet should be posted for employee review
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1312823

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 04/25/2018 - 05/10/2018
Issuance Date: 10/24/2018

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: U.S, Xpress, Inc.
Inspection Site: 151 Crossroads Pakway, Savannah, GA 31407

Citation I Item 1 Type of Violation: Serious

OSH ACT of 1970 Section (5)(a)(!): The employer did not furnish employment and a place of
employment which were free from recognized hazards that were causing or likely to cause death or
serious physical harm to employees in that employecs were exposed o a hazard of being struck-by a
Jockey truck and or over the road tractors;

A} Yard Area, on or about April 25, 2018, employees walk/work in the Yard Area at ni ght where over
the road (OTR) vehicles and powered industrial trucks (PIT) are regularly moving around, exposing
employees to a hazard of being struck by the OTR vehicles and or PITs.

Provide and require the use of high visibility reflective vest for employees who walk and work in the
Yard Area.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 11/20/2018
Proposcd Penalty: '

Area Director

Sew pages J through 4 of this Citation and Notficanon of Penalty Tor information on employer and employee Hghts and responsibilitics
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U.S. Department of Labor

Occupational Safely and Health Administration
450 Mall Boulevard

Svite J

Savannah, GA 31406

INVOICE /

DEBT COLLECTION NOTICE
Company Name: U.S. Xpress, Inc.
Inspection Site: 151 Crossroads Pakway, Savannah, GA 31407
Issuance Date: 10/24/2018
Summary of Penalties for Inspection Number 1312823
Citation 1, Serious $12934.00
TOTAL PROPOSED PENALTIES $12934.00

To avoid additional charges, please remit payment promptly to this Area Office for the total amount of the
uncontested penalties summarized above. Make your check or money order payable to: "DOL-OSHA". Please
indicate OSHA's Inspection Number (indicated above) on the remittance. You can also make your payment
electronically on www.pay.gov. On the left side of the pay.gov homepage, you will see an option to Search
Public Forms. Type "OSHA" and click Go. From the results, click on OSHA Penalty Pavment Form. The
direct link is hitps://www.pav.gov/paygov/forms/formInstance.htm]?agencvFormId=53090334. You will
be required to enter your inspection number when making the payment, Payments can be made by credit card or
Automated Clearing House (ACH) using your banking information. Payments of $25,000 or more require a
Transaction ID, and aiso must be paid using ACH. If you require a Transaction 1D, please contact the OSHA
Debt Collection Team at (202) 693-2170.

OSHA does not agree to any restrictions or conditions or endorsements put on any check, money order, or
electronic payment for less than the full amount due, and will cash the check or money order as if these
restrictions or conditions do not exist.

If a personal check is issued, it will be converted into an electronic fund transfer (EFT). This means that our
bank will copy your check and use the account information on it to electronically debit your account for the
amount of the check. The debit from your account will then usually occur within 24 hours and will be shown on
your regular account statement. You will not receive your original check back. The bank will destroy your
original check, but will keep a copy of it. If the EFT cannot be completed because of insufficient funds or closed
account, the bank will attempt 1o make the transfer up to 2 times.
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Pursuant to the Debt Collection Act of 1982 (Public Law 97-365) and regulations of the U.S. Department of
Laber (29 CFR Part 20), the Occupational Safety and Health Administration is required to assess interest,
delinquent charges, and administrative costs for the collection of delinquent penalty debts for violations of the
Occupational Safety and Health Act.

Interest: Interest charges will be assessed at an annual rate determined by the Secretary of the Treasury on all
penalty debt amounts not paid within one month (30 calendar days) of the date on which the debt amount
becomes due and payable (penalty due date). The current interest rate is one percent (1%). Interest will accrue
from the date on which the penalty amounts (as proposed or adjusted) become a final order of the Occupational
Safety and Health Review Commission (that is, 15 working days from your receipt of the Citation and
Notification of Penalty), unless you file a notice of contest. Interest charges will be waived if the full amount
owed is paid within 30 calendar days of the final order.

Delinguent Charges: A debt is considered delinguent if it has not been paid within one month (30 calendar
days) of the penalty due date or if a satisfactory payment arrangement has not been made. If the debt remains
delinquent for more than 90 calendar days, a delinquent charge of six percent (6%) per annum will be assessed
aceruing from the date that the debt became delinquent.

Administrative Costs: Agencies of the Department of Labor are required to assess additional charges for the

recovery of delinquent debts. These additional charges are administrative costs incurred by the Agency in its

¢ costs will be assessed for demand letters sent in an attempl to

w/EL)

attempt 1o collect an unpaid debt. Adminis
collect the unpaid debt.

A

argo E. Westmoreland Date

Area Director

Cilation and Natilication of Penahy Page B of 8 O5HA-2



Este documento es muy importante. Si ud. No habla inglés,
busque un traductor o llame al (912) 652-4393.

U.5. Department of Labor Occupational Safety and Health Administration
450 Mall Boulevard Suite J
Savannah, GA 31406
Phone: (912) 652-4393 Fax: (912) 652-4329

October 24, 2018 Step 1 - Choose a Response
Option and
Dear Scott Atkins, Act within 15 working days

On 04/25/2018, an OSHA compliance officer met with
you ar your representative as part of an inspection at 151
Crossroads Pakway Savannah, GA 31407. This letter includes
the citations for the violations that were found (see summary
below). Please choose one of the three options from the box to
the right and complete the associated steps found on the
following page within 15 working days. Please call us if you - . .
have any questions about the enclosed citation and/or Option #1 — Discuss with OSHA
penalties; we are here to help you choose thete

Respond now before you lose the ability to discuss
potential adjustments to penalty amounts and/or
due dates. Please choose one option below and
complete the steps on the next page.

I would like to discuss the citation with an
OSHA representative. This may lead to
thanges in the penalty amount, due date or
correction deadlines (if appropriate).

Mbsrgo E. Westmoreland, Area Director Option #'2 -;-n(:(;.)rrect and Pay

Your Citation Summary | agreF with the citation, penalties, and correction
deadlines, and do not contest.
U.S. Xpress, Inc.

Inspection Number: 1312823

Option #3 — Contest the Citation

Total Amount Due: 512934_00 I do not agree with the citation, penalties,
and/or correction deadlines, and would like to
Payment Due Date: 15 working days contest.
after receipt of
this letter

Questions or Concerns?

You rnust correct each violation by the dote listed in the If you have any questions or concerns

C:t;l::n ond N;J.tmi;strc;r;-af Penalty;'Plfet:sc:.see :hft ‘wo!atlans regarding the citation, penalties,
ond tne correction deodline for each violation starting on and/or correction deadiines, please

page 6. call us at (912) 652-4393,
Total Number of Violations: 1

Your First Correction Deadline is: |

11/20/2018



Step 2 — Complete One Option Checklist

Please post a copy of the citation at or near the place where each violation occurred, even if you plan to contest.
You can use the checklist to the right to help plan your next steps. Please do not send in your checklist.

Option #1 - Discuss with OSHA I will complete by:

possible to schedule a meeting with an OSHA representative that must
occur within 15 working days of receiving this citation. Bring supporting
documentation of existing conditions and corrections done thus far. Iif
necessary, yau can still contest the citation after this meeting. **This
meeting does NOT extend your 15 working day deadline to contest the
citation.**

a 1. Call: Margo E. Westmoreland, Area Director, at (912) 652-4393 as soon as

e e

< 4

58]

Fill in and post the attached “Notice to Employees OSHA Informal
Conference” after scheduling meeting.

Option #2 - Correct Violations and Pay Penalty 1 will complete by:

1. Correct viclations, then complete and mail the attached “Certification of
x Carrective Action Worksheet” along with the appropriate evidence of
repair (e.g. photos, purchase orders, etc.) to the OSHA office listed on the
first page, postmarked within 10 calendar days after each violation's
correction deadline and include any raquired evidence. If these
documents are transmitted by means other than mailing, the date the
Agency received the documents is the date of submission.

S S

2. Pay the Total Penalty by using one of the following methods:
% **include your Inspection Number (see first page) on the payment.**

Poy Online: Search "OSHA" on Poy by Check: Mail check ar
www.pay.gov and complete the “OSHA money order payable to “DOL-
Penalty Payment Form.” Pay by debit, OSHA” for the Total Penalty to
credit or Automated Clearing House the OSHA office listed an the
{ACH) within 15 working days. Penalties  first page within 15 working
over $25,000 must be paid by ACH and days. .

require a Transaction ID (Call 202-693-

2170 to obtain one).

Option #3 — Contest the Citation I will complete by:

Mail a letter of intent to legally contest to the OSHA office listed on the first page,
== postmarked within 15 working days.

= —_
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